
AGENDA 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AND WORK SESSION 

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers on 2nd Floor
Monday, July 18, 2022 

5:00 P.M. 

Page 1 of 1 

1. Call to Order
2. Roll Call
3. Invocation and Pledge
4. Announcements
5. Approval of the Agenda
6. Public Input
7. Consent Agenda

a. Approve Minutes
• Regular Meeting and Work Session held June 20, 2022
• Executive Session held June 20, 2022

b. Approve Master Meter End User License Agreement
8. Employee Recognition

PUBLIC HEARING 
9. APPEAL-C2200182:  Aero Group Racing of Georgia has petitioned to appeal Planning Commission

denial of VAR-C2200169.  Applicant is requesting to eliminate the 20’ foot buffer along the east side
of the property line for TMP 070 050, 070 004, 069 036, 069 037 adjoining TMP 070 049 001; Located
at 612 Duck Thurmond Road.  Public Hearing:  City Council on July 18, 2022.

BUSINESS 
10. ANX-C2200161:  Dustin Gillespie has petitioned to annex into the city limits of Dawsonville the 1.04

acre tract known as TMP 090 099, Located at 544 Gold Bullion Drive W, with a County Zoning of
RPC (Residential Planned Community) to City Zoning RPC (Residential Planned Community).
Public Hearing Dates:  Planning Commission on June 13, 2022, and City Council on June 20, 2022.
City Council for a decision on July 18, 2022. 

11. ANX-C2200162: Ryan and Jessica Disharoon have petitioned to annex into the city limits of
Dawsonville the 2.36 acre tract known as TMP 090 107 and 090 104, Located at 446 Gold Bullion
Drive W, with a County Zoning of RPC (Residential Planned Community) to City Zoning RPC
(Residential Planned Community).  Public Hearing Dates:  Planning Commission on June 13, 2022,
and City Council on June 20, 2022.  City Council for a decision on July 18, 2022.

12. ANX-C2200170: B&K Turner Family, LLP has petitioned to annex into the city limits of Dawsonville
the 35.31 acre tract known as TMP 083 025, Located at Land Lot 584, 4th District, Section 1, with a
County Zoning of RA (Residential Agricultural/Residential Exurban) to City Zoning AP (Annexed
Property District).  Public Hearing Dates:  Planning Commission on June 13, 2022, and City Council
on June 20, 2022.  City Council for a decision on July 18, 2022.

WORK SESSION 
13. Application for Lease at City Hall Property
14. Proposed Lift Station Request – Starlight Homes

STAFF REPORTS 
15. Bob Bolz, City Manager
16. Robin Gazaway, Finance Administrator

  EXECUTIVE SESSION, IF NEEDED   
  ADJOURNMENT 

The next scheduled City Council meeting is Monday, August 1, 2022 

Those persons with disabilities who require reasonable accommodations in order to allow them to observe and/or 
participate in this meeting or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting, should contact the Clerk at 
Dawsonville City Hall at 706-265-3256 at least two (2) business days prior to the meeting. 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                    CONSENT AGENDA           

   
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  07/18/2022     
   
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 

 
   CONSIDERATION AND APPROVAL OF ITEMS BELOW; SEE ATTACHED 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS  
 

a. Approve Minutes  
• Regular Meeting held June 20, 2022 
• Executive Session held June 20, 2022 

b. Approve Master Meter End User License Agreement 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #       7     
 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                       APPROVE MINUTES    

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  07/18/2022     
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #  NA      

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
     TO APPROVE THE MINUTES FROM: 

 
• REGULAR MEETING AND WORK SESSION HELD JUNE 20, 2022 
• EXECUTIVE SESSION HELD JUNE 20, 2022 

 
 

 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

 
 
     
 
 

     OPTIONS: 
           
  AMEND OR APPROVE AS PRESENTED 
 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
     REQUESTED BY:  Beverly Banister, City Clerk    

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

 AGENDA ITEM #   7a      
 

 

 



MINUTES 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AND WORK SESSION 

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers on 2nd Floor 
Monday, June 20, 2022 

5:00 P.M. 
   

Page 1 of 3 
 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER:  Mayor Pro-Tem Walden called the meeting to order at 5:00 pm. 
 

2. ROLL CALL: Present were Councilmember Mark French, Councilmember Caleb Phillips, 
Councilmember William Illg, City Attorney Kevin Tallant, City Manager Bob Bolz, City Clerk Beverly 
Banister, Public Works Director Trampas Hansard, Utilities Operation Manager Jacob Barr, Planning 
Director David Picklesimer and Finance Administrator Robin Gazaway. 

 

3. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE:  Invocation and pledge were led by Councilmember French.   
 

4. ANNOUNCEMENTS:  Mayor Pro-Tem Walden announced the next Food Truck Friday is July 1st; the 
Farmer’s Market is open every Saturday starting at 8:00 am; voting day for the primary runoff is 
Tuesday, June 21st and the next City Council meeting will be held July 18, 2022. 

 

5. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA:  Motion to approve the agenda as presented made by M. French; 
second by W. Illg.  Vote carried unanimously in favor. 
 

6. PUBLIC INPUT:  None 
 

7. CONSENT AGENDA:  Motion to approve the consent agenda for the following items (a) made by W. 
Illg; second by M. French.  Vote carried unanimously in favor. 

 

a. Approve Minutes  
• Regular Meeting held June 6, 2022 
• Executive Session held June 6, 2022 
 

8. EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION: The Mayor and Council presented the May 2022 Employee of the 
Month award to Tracy Smith.  

 

PUBLIC HEARING 

9. ANX-C2200161:  Dustin Gillespie has petitioned to annex into the city limits of Dawsonville the 1.04 
acre tract known as TMP 090 099, Located at 544 Gold Bullion Drive W, with a County Zoning of 
RPC (Residential Planned Community) to City Zoning RPC (Residential Planned Community).  
Public Hearing Dates:  Planning Commission on June 13, 2022, and City Council on June 20, 2022.  
City Council for a decision on July 18, 2022. 
 

Motion to open the public hearing made by C. Phillips; second by M. French.  Vote carried 
unanimously in favor.  Mayor Pro-Tem Walden conducted the public hearing.  Public Works Director 
Picklesimer read the annexation request.  No one spoke in favor of or opposition to the request.  
Motion to close the public hearing made by W. Illg; second by C. Phillips.  Vote carried unanimously 
in favor.  
 

10. ANX-C2200162: Ryan and Jessica Disharoon have petitioned to annex into the city limits of 
Dawsonville the 2.36 acre tract known as TMP 090 107 and 090 104, Located at 446 Gold Bullion 
Drive W, with a County Zoning of RPC (Residential Planned Community) to City Zoning RPC 
(Residential Planned Community).  Public Hearing Dates:  Planning Commission on June 13, 2022, 
and City Council on June 20, 2022.  City Council for a decision on July 18, 2022. 
 

Motion to open the public hearing made by M. French; second by W. Illg.  Vote carried unanimously 
in favor.  Mayor Pro-Tem Walden conducted the public hearing.  Public Works Director Picklesimer 
read the annexation request.  No one spoke in favor of or opposition to the request.  Motion to close 
the public hearing made by W. Illg; second by M. French.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.  
 

11. ANX-C2200170: B&K Turner Family, LLP has petitioned to annex into the city limits of Dawsonville 
the 35.31 acre tract known as TMP 083 025, Located at Land Lot 584, 4th District, Section 1, with a 
County Zoning of RA (Residential Agricultural/Residential Exurban) to City Zoning AP (Annexed 
Property District).  Public Hearing Dates:  Planning Commission on June 13, 2022, and City Council 
on June 20, 2022.  City Council for a decision on July 18, 2022. 
 



MINUTES 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AND WORK SESSION 

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers on 2nd Floor 
Monday, June 20, 2022 

5:00 P.M. 
   

Page 2 of 3 
 

Motion to open the public hearing made by C. Phillips; second by M. French.  Vote carried 
unanimously in favor.  Mayor Pro-Tem Walden conducted the public hearing.  Public Works Director 
Picklesimer read the annexation request.  The following individual spoke in favor of the request: 
 

• Michael Turner, 1090 Oakhaven Drive, Roswell – He stated his property is an island and 
since his property touches property in the City limits, he is requesting annexation into the City 
limits. 

 

No one spoke in opposition to the request.  Motion to close the public hearing made by W. Illg; second 
by M. French.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.  

BUSINESS 
 

12. REQUEST FOR WAIVER OF RECONNECTION FEES:  Utilities Operation Manager Barr provided 
an overview of the customer’s delinquent history and noted the repeated efforts made by the City 
staff to alert the customer of the impending disconnection of services; staff recommends denying 
the request to waive the $300 reconnection fee.  The applicant, Eric Johnston residing at 530 
Perimeter Road, spoke directly to the City Council requesting consideration of waiving the fee due 
to some unexpected major repairs in his home.  Several questions were asked and answered among 
the Council and Staff.   
 

Motion to waive half of the reconnection fee ($150) made by M. French; second by C. Phillips.  Vote 
carried unanimously in favor.  
 

13. RESOLUTION NO. R2022-06: ADOPT THE FY 2022-2023 BUDGET:  Motion to approve Resolution 
No. R2022-06 to adopt the FY 2022-2023 budget made by W. Illg; second by M. French.  Vote carried 
unanimously in favor. (Exhibit “A”) 
 

14. INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT REGARDING LOCAL OPTION SALES TAX:  Attorney 
Tallant provided a brief overview of the Local Option Sales Tax intergovernmental agreement with 
Dawson County. 

 

Motion to approve the IGA as presented made by M. French; second by C. Phillips.  Councilmember 
Illg and French both expressed their appreciation in working with the County and see the value to 
both government entities. Vote carried unanimously in favor.  (Exhibit “B”)  

 

WORK SESSION 
 

15. PROPOSED LIFT STATION REQUEST – STARLIGHT HOMES: Planning Director Picklesimer 
provided a brief summary of the request and history.  He stated staff recommends denial of the 
request due to the City’s Wastewater Master Plan which is to reduce the number of lift stations, the 
City’s engineer’s recommendation to deny the request and the additional burden and cost that will be 
placed on the City.  Staff recommends Starlight Homes install the new gravity sewer line to the existing 
Shoal Creek lift station and modify to upgrade the same to increase the pumping capacity and to 
install gravity sewer up to Highway 53 to decommission the downtown lift station.  Utilities Operation 
Manager Barr further stated it is always better to move in the direction of gravity sewer and move 
away from pump stations.  The burden on the City for upkeep and expense would be great.  The 
simpler way in this situation would be gravity sewer. Joe Ingram from Starlight Homes spoke to the 
Council about their concerns of the force main being on a property outside of their control and 
ownership.  He further provided information related to the conversations had with the Howser Mill 
HOA and Song Swallow as both could impact and/or assist with getting sewer to their development.  
 

Motion to table the item to the July 18, 2022 City Council meeting made by W. Illg; second by M. 
French.  Councilmember Phillips stated he’d like to speak with staff and hopefully Starlight Homes 
can work out a solution with the adjacent property owners since it would be the best solution for 
everyone.  Joe Ingram further commented if an agreement could be reached with the Howser Mill 
HOA perhaps a temporary solution could be offered until the force main could be installed.  Vote 
carried unanimously in favor. 
 



MINUTES 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AND WORK SESSION 

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers on 2nd Floor 
Monday, June 20, 2022 

5:00 P.M. 
   

Page 3 of 3 
 

16. DAWSONVILLE MOONSHINE DISTILLERY LEASE – REQUEST FOR EARLY TERMINATION:  
Motion to terminate the lease with the Dawsonville Moonshine Distillery as of July 31, 2022 and follow 
the lease guidelines concerning the security deposit made by M. French; second by C. Phillips.  Vote 
carried unanimously in favor.  
 

17. DOC BROWN FARM DISTILLERS – PRESENTATION TO REQUEST LEASE SPACE AT CITY 
HALL:  Amy Brown from Doc Brown Farm Distillers presented her business to the City Council 
requesting to begin a lease on August 1, 2022. 

 

Motion to enter into a lease agreement with Doc Brown Farm Distillers with the same terms as the 
Dawsonville Moonshine Distillery lease starting August 1, 2022 through December 31, 2022 made by 
C. Phillips; second by W. Illg.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.  

 

STAFF REPORTS 
 

18. BOB BOLZ, CITY MANAGER:  He reported the leak adjustment for last month totaled $134.63 and 
can answer any questions on his report provided in the packet. 
 

19. ROBIN GAZAWAY, FINANCE ADMINISTRATOR:  Financial reports representing fund balances and 
activity through May 31, 2022 were provided in the agenda packet; no questions or comments from 
City Council. 
 

     EXECUTIVE SESSION:    

 At 5:57 p.m. a motion to close regular session and go into executive session for pending/potential 
litigation was made by W. Illg; second by M. French.  Vote carried unanimously in favor. 

 

 At 6:23 p.m. a motion to close the executive session and resume the regular session was made by 
C. Phillips; second by M. French.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.        

          ADJOURNMENT: 
 

At 6:25 p.m. a motion to adjourn the meeting was made by W. Illg; second by M. French.  Vote carried 
unanimously. 

 
 

 Approved this 18th day of July 2022. 
 
By: CITY OF DAWSONVILLE 

         
   ___________________________________ 
   Mike Eason, Mayor 
 
   ___________________________________  
   Caleb Phillips, Councilmember Post 1 

 
         
   William Illg, Councilmember Post 2  

 
         
   John Walden, Councilmember Post 3 
 
   ___________________________________ 
   Mark French, Councilmember Post 4 
   
 
Attest: _________________________        
           Beverly A. Banister, City Clerk 





Exhibit "A"



Exhibit "A"



Exhibit "A"



Exhibit "A"



Exhibit "A"



Exhibit "A"



Exhibit "A"



Exhibit "A"



Exhibit "A"



Exhibit "A"



Exhibit "B"



Exhibit "B"



Exhibit "B"



Exhibit "B"



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:  APPROVE MASTER METER END USER LICENSE AGREEMENT   

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  07/18/2022     
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #  NA      

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
     TO APPROVE THE MASTER METER END USER LICENSE AGREEMENT  

 
 

 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

     
• APPROVED BY LEGAL 
• AGREEMENT IS FOR SOFTWARE IN CONJUCTION WITH THE WATER METER 

REPLACEMENT PROJECT 
 
     
 
 

     OPTIONS: 
           
  AMEND OR APPROVE AS PRESENTED 
 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
     REQUESTED BY:  Jacob Barr, Utilities Operation Manager    

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

 AGENDA ITEM #   7b      
 

 

 















GEORGIA



















                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                                  EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION_____________  

   
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  07/18/2022     
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 

TO RECOGNIZE AND PRESENT THE FOLLOWING:  
• JUNE 2022 EMPLOYEE OF THE MONTH  
• EMPLOYEE OF THE SECOND QUARTER 
• SERVICE AWARDS FOR JULY 

 
   TO RECOGNIZE VOLUNTEERS WHO ASSISTED WITH THE IMPLEMENTATION OF THE DISC GOLF  

COURSE – THE SHINER’S 9 AT MAIN STREET PARK 
 
 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 
 

 
 

     OPTIONS: 
      
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
   
 
 

 
 

 
     REQUESTED BY:                 Bob Bolz, City Manager________ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #    8     
 

 

 



                                           
 

 

SUBJECT:   APPEAL C2200182__________________________________         _________ 
 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  July 18, 2022       
 
PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: PUBLIC HEARING 
 
Appeal of the Planning Commission decision requires a public hearing before consideration.   
 
HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 
1. Property is in Post 4 City Council member Mark French district. 

 
2. Applicant is appealing Planning Commission denial of VAR-C2200169 per Article IX Sec 910.3. 

 
3. Variance request was for Zoning Article VIII Sec 802 (4) Buffer Required.  

 
4. Applicant requested to eliminate the required 20-foot undisturbed buffer adjoining TMP 069 036, 

069 037, 070 004, 070 050 and 070 049 001. 

___________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

OPTIONS: 
 

    Approve, Deny, Postpone___   __________________________________________________________ 
 

RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 

 

DEPARTMENT:  Planning and Zoning______________________________________________ 
 
REQUESTED BY: Stacy Harris_        ____________________________________________ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM # 9 
 





















City Council 
 

Caleb Phillips, Post 1 
William Illg, Post 2 

John Walden, Post 3 
Mark French, Post 4 

 
 

Planning Commission: 
             

Mayor 
Mike Eason 

 
City Manager 
Robert Bolz 

 
City Clerk 

Beverly Banister 
  

Randy Davis, Chairperson  Planning Director, 

Matt Fallstrom, Post 1 415 Highway 53 East, Suite 100 David Picklesimer 

Josh Nichols, Post 2 Dawsonville, GA  30534  
Sandy Sawyer, Post 3 Office (706)265-3256  Zoning Admin Assistant, 
Anna Tobolski, Post 4  www.dawsonville-ga.gov 

 
Stacy Harris 

 

PUBLIC NOTICE 
A public hearing will be heard by the City of Dawsonville City Council beginning at 5:00 p.m. respectively on 
the date indicated below.  Public hearings are heard in the Council Chambers on the second floor at City Hall 
located at 415 Hwy 53 East, Dawsonville, Georgia 30534.  The public is invited to participate. 
 
 

APPEAL-C2200182:  Aero Group Racing of Georgia has petitioned to appeal Planning Commission denial of 
VAR-C2200169.  Applicant is requesting to eliminate the 20’ foot buffer along the east side of the property 
line for TMP 070 050, 070 004, 069 036, 069 037 adjoining TMP 070 049 001; Located at 612 Duck Thurmond 
Road.  Public Hearing:  City Council on Monday, July 18, 2022. 

 

 

 

 

 

If you wish to speak on the requests, please contact City Hall for a CAMPAIGN DISCLOSURE form. This form is 
only needed if you have made campaign contributions in the amount of $250.00 or more within 2 years 
prior to this date. 
Those persons with disabilities who require reasonable accommodations in order to allow them to observe and/or participate in this 
meeting or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting, should contact the Clerk at Dawsonville City Hall at 706-
265-3256 at least two (2) business days prior to the meeting. 









                                           
 

 

SUBJECT:                                  ANX C2200161         _________ 
 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  07/18/2022      
 
PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: VOTE 
 
Annexation application requires a public hearing before approval.   
 
HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
1. Property is located within post 4 Mark French council district. 

 
2. The subject property adjoins City zoned PUD district to the south, County RPC district to the east, 

City PUD district to the west and City PUD district to the north. 
 

3. Applicant is requesting to annex 1.04 acres. 
 

4. Existing County RPC zoning.  
 

5. Proposed City RPC zoning. 
 

6. Etowah water service is current provider.  
 

7. Onsite septic system is currently in use. 
 

8. Roadway infrastructure is private maintained.  
 

9. City Council approved open annexation on 12/20/21 thru 4/30/22 for unincorporated islands 
properties.  

 
10. Dawson County Board of Commissioners heard the request on 5/19/22. The board had no objection 

to the request and did not take a vote. Approval by 30-day default will be on 6/4/22. 
 

11. Planning Commission approved the request on 6/13/22 without conditions. 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

OPTIONS: 
 ___________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 

 

DEPARTMENT:  Planning and Zoning______________________________________________ 
 
REQUESTED BY: David Picklesimer_        ____________________________________________ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM # 10 
 



































                                           
 

 

SUBJECT:                                  ANX C2200162         _________ 
 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  07/18/2022       
 
PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: VOTE 
 
Annexation application requires a public hearing before approval.   
 
HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
1. Property is in post 4 Mark French Council district. 

 
2. The subject property adjoins City zoned PUD district to the south, City PUD district to the east, City 

PUD district to the west and City PUD district to the north. 
 

3. Applicant is requesting to annex 2.36 acres. 
 

4. Existing County RPC zoning. 
 

5. Proposed City RPC zoning. 
 

6. Etowah water service is provider.  
 

7. Onsite septic system is currently in use. 
 

8. Roadway infrastructure is private maintained.  
 

9. City Council approved open annexation on 12/20/21 thru 4/30/22 for unincorporated islands 
properties.  

 
10. Dawson County Board of Commissioners heard the request on 5/19/22. The board had no objection 

to the request and did not take a vote. Approval by 30-day default will be on 6/4/22. 
 

11. Planning Commission approved the request on 6/13/22 without conditions. 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

OPTIONS: 
 ___________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 

 

DEPARTMENT:  Planning and Zoning______________________________________________ 
 
REQUESTED BY: David Picklesimer_        ____________________________________________ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM # 11 
 



































                                           
 

 

SUBJECT:                                  ANX C2200170         _________ 
 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  07/18/2022      
 
PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: VOTE 
 
Annexation application requires a public hearing before approval.   
 
HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
1. Property is located within Caleb Phillips Post 1 Council district. 

 
2. The subject property adjoins City zoned R3 district to the south, City zoned R3 district to the east, 

County zoned RA district to the west and City zoned INST district to the north. 
 

3. Applicant is requesting to annex 35.31 acres. 
 

4. Existing County RA zoning. 
 

5. Proposed City AP zoning. 
 

6. Rezoning petition cannot be filed for 12 months from the effective date.  
 

7. The AP zoning designation is a temporary designation up to a period of 16 months after the effective 
date and shall automatically convert from AP zoning district to R1 zoning district. 

 
8. Mayor and City Council can extend the AP zoning district up to 18 months.   

 
9. Water and Sewer service is proposed to be provided by Etowah Water and Sewer.  

 
10. Dawson County Board of Commissioners heard the request on 6/2/22. The board had no objection to 

the request and did not take a vote. Approval by 30-day default will be on 6/16/22. 
 

11. Planning Commission approved the request without conditions on 6/13/22. 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

OPTIONS: 
 ___________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 

 

DEPARTMENT:  Planning and Zoning______________________________________________ 
 
REQUESTED BY: David Picklesimer_        ____________________________________________ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM # 12 
 



































                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:  APPLICATION FOR LEASE AT CITY HALL PROPERTY 
      
CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  07/18/2022  
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 

    TO CONSIDER REQUEST FROM CHERYL WOOD TO LEASE CITY HALL PROPERTY 
    
 
 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

• 06/20/2022: COUNCIL VOTED TO TERMINATE LEASE ON 07/31/2022 AT THE REQUEST 
OF CHERYL WOOD 

• DOC BROWN FARM & DISTILLERS DID NOT MOVE FORWARD WITH OCCUPYING 
SPACE AS PREVIOUSLY APPROVED 

• CHERYL WOOD REQUESTED CONSIDERATION LEASING THE PROPERTY (SEE 
ATTACHED EMAIL REQUEST) 

   
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
   
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY: Bob Bolz, City Manager______ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   13     
 

 

 



From: Cheryl
To: Bob Bolz
Cc: Mike Eason; ktallant@mhtlegal.com; Beverly Banister; Caleb Phillips; John Walden; Mark French; William Illg
Subject: Re: Lease
Date: Wednesday, June 29, 2022 3:49:28 PM

Mayor and Council,
    I didn’t think to ask for stipulations in the request . I would like to be on the the next agenda
to have my lease not terminated July 31 or a new lease if necessary. Obviously, I have a long
standing business in the current space. 
I apologize for any inconvenience as I am surprised the sale did not proceed .
Thank you,
Cheryl Wood 
7704011211

Sent from my iPhone

 

 

 

 

mailto:cherylwood1@yahoo.com
mailto:citymanager@dawsonville-ga.gov
mailto:mike.eason@dawsonville-ga.gov
mailto:/o=ExchangeLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=3eb9ccc1d6474f13aea6a11eb8018bad-Guest_9805f
mailto:clerk@dawsonville-ga.gov
mailto:cphillips@dawsonville-ga.gov
mailto:john.walden@dawsonville-ga.gov
mailto:mark.french@dawsonville-ga.gov
mailto:william.illg@dawsonville-ga.gov


                                           
 

 

SUBJECT:  PROPOSED LIFT STATION REQUEST – STARLIGHT HOMES______________ 
 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:        07/18/2022                
 

 

BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #_______________________________________ 

 Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget: _____ Capital Budget   ________Other  
 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____ Enterprise _____General Fund 

 

 

PURPOSE FOR REQUEST:  ** TABLED FROM 06/20/2022 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 
Starlight Homes Is requesting to install a wastewater lift station within the development.  
 
HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 

• Lift station would service parcels 092B 021 and 092B 024. 
• Lift station would serve 102 lots. 
• City staff has provided summary letter dated 6/6/22 with recommendation to deny.   

________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

OPTIONS:  
Approve, Deny or Postpone  

________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
 

 
 

DEPARTMENT: Planning and Utilities________________________________________________ 
 

REQUESTED BY: David Picklesimer and Jacob Barr____________________________________ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM # 14 
 

























































                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                       STAFF REPORT: CITY MANAGER    

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  07/18/2022      
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #  NA      

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
     TO PROVIDE PROJECT UPDATES  

 
 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

 
    SEE ATTACHED OUTLINE  
     
 
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
      
      
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY:  Bob Bolz, City Manager    

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #     15     
 

 

 



CITY MANAGER REPORT 

JULY 12 FOR JULY 18, 2022, MEETING 

 
Friday Night Food Truck Night: Our July 1st event was another great success. Six trucks were on hand, including, 
Sweet Cheeks BBQ, Philly Creations, Old Dad’s Wings, Chuy’s Tacos, Tikiz Shaved Ice & Ice Cream, and Kandie’s 
Korn with prize giveaways by Launch. Our next event is August 5th and will include live music. 

Farmer’s Market:  The Farmer’s Market continues to fill to capacity each Saturday morning and starting this month 
some vendors are at the market on Wednesday afternoons from 3-6 PM. 
 
A Family Fair: This event scheduled for July 29th from 6-11 PM is just around the corner. Co-sponsored by the city, 
the event will feature from the Dawson County Family Connection Community Collaborative, non-profits, social services 
agencies, faith-based organizations, public servants, mental wellness providers, children’s service providers, and/or 
support groups who provide services for substance abuse, parenting, bereavement, etc. The overall goal is to provide 
these agencies an opportunity to connect with their community in a fun-filled afternoon of activity. Each agency will 
provide a family friendly activity, carnival-like, at their station and their own agency media describing their resources. 
Free food will be available (hotdogs, hamburgers, water, juice, popcorn, cotton candy), and the event will culminate 
with a family friendly movie, Sing 2.  So far 35 groups have signed up, including, Alliance Together, Amerigroup 
Community Care, Aruka Community Counseling Center, Avita Community Partners, Boy Scouts of North Georgia, 
CareSource, Cornerstone Christian Church, Creative Enterprises, Dawson Community Food Bank, Dawson County 
Family Connections, Dawson County Health Department, Dawson County Library, Dawson County Parks & Recreation 
Department, Dawson County Schools -School Social Workers, Dawson County Senior Center, Dawson County WEE 
Books, Department of Community Affairs, Georgia Highland Medical Services, Georgia Mountain Food Bank, Good 
Shepherd Clinic, Goodwill Dawsonville Career Center, Hall-Dawson CASA, Kare for Kids, Lanier Technical College, 
Local Church, Next Generation Youth Development/V2, No One Alone, Peach State Health Plan, Rape Response, St. 
Vincent de Paul/Christ the Redeemer, The Place of Dawson, The Way Home, WorkSource Georgia, and Young Life. 

Fall Flu Clinic at the Farmer’s Market: The Dawson Co EMA/EMS and the local Department of Public Health have 
approached the city about hosting a flu clinic this fall at the Farmer’s Market. They seek to use this location as opposed 
to one of the county parks. We will let you know more as soon as we know more. 

Disc Golf: This new feature continues to be extremely popular. Tee pads have been poured, work continues on the 
trail, and efforts are still underway to complete the course. Over 420 people have signed in to the UDISC website, and 
that is only a percentage of the total number of rounds played. 

Main Street Park Projects: 
 

• Disc Golf: See comments above. 
 

• Basketball Court: The basketball courts location has been laid out and an RFP is being developed to obtain 
bids.   

 
• Pickleball Courts:  We are finalizing the RFP to bid this project out. 

 
• Shade: Staff continue researching shade for various locations in the park. Costs are excessive and we are 

developing recommendations.  
 

• Skate Park Expansion: Staff are estimating cost for expansion of this amenity. 



  
• Small Bathroom between Shelter #3 and Skate Park/Court Area: We are working to develop a simple 

design for a very small rest room to serve this area.  
 

• Stage: Staff are researching the purchase of a hydraulic, mobile stage, similar to what we used at the tree 
lighting event. Since it is portable it can be set up and taken down in a few hours. This idea is opposed to an 
amphitheater. Our concerns for an amphitheater include cost, additionally facility would sit outside, weather, 
and possibly get vandalized. As we develop more research, we will present pros, cons, and a recommendation 
soon.  

 

• Dog Park: Eagle Scout candidate Palmer Hartley has finished his project complete with obstacles for the 
dogs, signage, and an entry way. Soon we hope to have a grand opening of this great addition to our 
community. 

 
• Bridge & Trail to Library: A considerable amount of work was carried out this month to establish the trail 

and bridge to the library.  We will be recommending alternatives to the bridge. 
 

• Sidewalk to Main Street Park from Care Facility: We now have bids to connect the care facility to the park. 
The Dawson County Civitan Club will reimburse the city for the portion of the sidewalk on their property, and 
we will construct and pay for the sidewalk on city property. We are awaiting word from the contractor for when 
work will start. 

 
• Geocaching Site: Geocaching is a sport that is growing in popularity. There has existed a cache at the 

GRHOF for years. We have been approached by a volunteer geocaching enthusiast that wants to install and 
will maintain three sites, one in Main Street Park, one at the Dog Park, and one at Wallace Park. Staff have 
met with her, and we are awaiting her official proposal. 
 

• Splash Pad: Research into the possibility of adding this amenity is underway. 
 
Phone System Upgrade: Staff will receive training on the new system on July13th with plans for the system to go live 
on July 14th.  
 
Downtown Strategic Plan Grant from ARC: Our application for this grant has been selected by the ARC for funding. 
We now await final approval from the ARC-DC office, which could take up to six weeks. 

 
Project – Administrative Building for Public Works and Utilities Director: This project is complete with only punch 
list items remaining. 
 
EV Charging Station: The station was installed and became operational at the end of June. The site has already been 
used a number of times. Indigo Energy’s website has already received some positive comments from customers. 
 

Roundabout at Old Courthouse: No word from GDOT yet as to funding availability. 
 
LMIG Funding: We have received word that we are available for a $36,988.64 LMIG grant that would require a 30% 
match assuming projects we recommend are approved. Staff are working on this grant application with a February 
deadline. 
 



Proposed Amicalola Falls Scenic Byway: GDOT has accepted an application for the designation of a Georgia 
Scenic Byway through Dawson, Gilmer, and Pickens Counties, anchored by Amicalola Falls State Park. The 
proposed route travels mainly on state highways including sections of GA Highways 52, 183, 53, 136, as well as 
portions of local roads including Bailey Waters, Clear Creek, Fendley, Yukon, Jones Mountain, Burnt Mountain 
Roads, and Orchard Lane. Sponsored by the Dawson County Chamber of Commerce, Gilmer County Chamber of 
Commerce, Gilmer County Development Authority, Pickens County Chamber of Commerce, Pickens County 
Development Authority, Dawson County, Gilmer County, Pickens County, the town of Talking Rock, and the cities of 
Dawsonville, and Jasper. The designation will assist in conserving, enhancing, and displaying the history, culture, 
and attraction of these mountain counties while also boosting heritage and cultural tourism, and appreciation for the 
natural beauty of the area. The designation may also result in additional grant opportunities for all communities 
involved as well as provide marketing opportunities to reach an audience who appreciates and protects the intrinsic 
qualities that make the byway unique. The scenic byway designation doesn’t impose any restrictions other than no 
new billboards. Existing billboards are grandfathered in and will remain in place. There are currently 15 Georgia 
Scenic Byways throughout the state. A series of public meetings area scheduled in the area. There will be a public 
meeting at the GRHOF from 5-6PM on Thursday, July 28th.  
 
STEM Program: We continue to work with Dawson County Schools and the GRHOF to develop a STEM program 
utilizing the museum and possibly Main Street Park.  
 
Covid Protocol: No staff are out due to pandemic issues.  
 
ARPA Funding: We received $3 million grant for the wastewater treatment plant. The $500,000.00 for the well was 
denied as were grants for the museum and the airport. 
 
Water First Program: Chuck Benefield, formerly of GTB now with CEC is drafting a proposal to prepare the city’s 
involvement in the Water First Program.  
 
Commission Meetings:  The Planning Commission did not have a meeting this month. The DDA Meeting will be 
held on July 25th.  
 
Comprehensive Plan: It is almost time to begin reviewing our city’s comprehensive plan last completed in 2018. 
This formal process should start in September. We are working with Adam Hazell of GMRC planning to begin this 
process and discussing update of our CIE as part of that plan. 
 

Old Cemetery to National Register of Historic Places: Pre-pandemic, the city was working on getting the 
cemetery listed on the National Register of Historic Places. The process got put on hold due to the pandemic. Staff 
are working with Joe Rothwell at GMRC to get this project re-started. 
 
Impact Fees Study: The RFP went live on our website and the GA Procurement registry on Thursday, May 12th.  It 
will be advertised in the Dawson County News on 05/18 and 05/25. Deadline to submit questions: 05/27/2022 at 5:00 
PM. Staff have extended the time period for submittal to July 1st. We have received two RFP’s. We recommend 
reviewing by a committee of the City Manager, City Clerk, Finance Administrator, the Mayor, one to two City Council 
members, and our attorney. 

Annual Fluoride Testing: The City water system passed the annual fluoride testing with flying colors this month.  



Water Meter Upgrade: The contract is finalized, and a pre-construction meeting is scheduled for July 22nd.  
 

Deputy Program with Sheriff’s Office: One of the deputies assigned to the city, Vic Gazaway, transferred to an 
SRO position on 07/09. Until the Sheriff’s Office can determine a replacement, we will only have one officer who will 
work M-F from 1-9 PM. At this time, they have not shared a timeline for how long we can be expected to be without a 
deputy. They are actively recruiting a replacement.  We will only be paying for one officer, but we will only have one 
officer for coverage. Patrol units will be our coverage via a call to 911. For several months we have known that Vic 
was transferring on a TBA date to become an SRO. We wish him well. 

Distillery Lease & Sale: Doc Brown Distilleries pulled out of the deal to purchase the Distillery. 
 

Training & Accomplishments: 

 

 GMA Convention: Councilmen Walden and Illg participated in the annual GMA convention. 
 

 Class III Wastewater License: Please join me in congratulating Blake Croft who passed the state’s tough 
Class III Wastewater Class and testing. This is in addition to his passing the Class III Drinking Water Class a 
few months ago. Now both Blake and Jacob Barr are certified at both levels. 

 
 Staff Training: CPR/AED training is scheduled for July 15th and First Aid/Stop the Bleed Training is 

scheduled for July 22nd.  
 
Vacation Time: Several staff took some well-deserved time off this week and have plans for the next two weeks with 
kids returning to school in two weeks. 
 
Leak Adjustments: 6 Leak Adjustment this month. 

Water $2,087.80   Sewer $1,593.28   Total $3,681.08 

Calendar YTD     $14,380.79 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                       STAFF REPORT: FINANCE ADMINISTRATOR    

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  07/18/2022       
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #  NA      

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
     TO PRESENT FUND BALANCE AND ACTIVITY THROUGH JUNE 30, 2022 
 

 
 

 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

 
    SEE ATTACHED FINANCIAL REPORTS  
     
 
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
      
      
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY:  Robin Gazaway, Finance Administrator    

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   16   
 

 

 



CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA
GENERAL FUND

July 1, 2021 - June 31, 2022

100%

Budget Actual Percentage
REVENUES
      Taxes 1,744,550$       2,038,320$       116.84%
      Licenses and permits 102,525            99,326              96.88%
      Intergovernmental revenues 35,000              42,207              120.59%
      Fees 249,000            298,194            119.76%
      Other 70,057              104,276            148.84%

               Total revenues 2,201,132         2,582,323         117.32%

EXPENDITURES
   Department:
      Council 99,215              108,592            109.45%
      Mayor 21,480              19,325              89.97%
      Elections 8,000                12,587              157.34%
      Administration 947,570            988,294            104.30%
      City Hall building 131,135            116,393            88.76%
      Animal control 1,523                113                   7.42%
      Roads 520,996            576,076            110.57%
      Parks 53,913              165,217            306.45%
      Planning and zoning 380,300            395,147            103.90%
      Economic development 37,000              12,000              32.43%

 
               Total expenditures 2,201,132         2,393,744         108.75%

TOTAL REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 188,579            

      Transfer in From Reserves (188,579)          

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE -                   



CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA
WATER, SEWER, AND GARBAGE FUND

July 1, 2021 - June 31, 2022

Budget Actual Percentage
REVENUES
       Water fees 710,000$        891,048$        125.50%
       Sewer fees 810,000          1,048,704       129.47%
       Garbage fees 203,500          268,873          132.12%
       Miscellaneous 371,525          192,247          51.75%

               
               Total revenues 2,095,025       2,400,872       114.60%

EXPENDITURES
        Depreciation 574,000          576,166          100.38%
        Garbage service 175,000          212,731          121.56%
        Group insurance 124,000          133,096          107.34%
        Insurance -                  31,310            #DIV/0!
        Interest 87,450            81,198            92.85%
        Payroll taxes 27,778            25,180            90.65%
        Professional 115,891          210,623          181.74%
        Miscellaneous 248,865          121,505          48.82%
        Repairs/supplies 145,423          291,278          200.30%
        Retirement 22,000            35,630            161.95%
        Salaries 347,402          335,764          96.65%
        Technical services 72,037            90,698            125.90%
        Utilities 155,179          152,828          98.48%

               Total expenditures 2,095,025       2,298,007       109.69%

INCOME (LOSS) 102,865          



CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA
SPLOST VI

July 1, 2021 - June 31, 2022

SPLOST VI
Budget Actual Percentage

REVENUES
       Taxes -                   -                   #DIV/0!
       Interest 300                   366                   121.93%
       Other 555,700            -                   0.00%

               Total revenues 556,000            366                   0.07%

EXPENDITURES (Capital Outlays)
       City hall acquisition -                   -                   #DIV/0!
       Roads and sidewalks 494,000            695,996            140.89%
       Public works equipment - roads -                   6,325                0.00%
       Sewer projects -                   -                   0.00%
       Public works equipment - sewer -                   -                   0.00%
       Water projects -                   -                   0.00%
       Public works equipment - water -                   -                   0.00%
       Farmers market 62,000              9,000                14.52%
       Parks and recreation -                   -                   0.00%

               Total expenditures 556,000            711,321            127.94%

TOTAL REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES (710,955)          

      Transfer in From Reserves 710,955            
 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (0)                     



CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA
SPLOST VII

July 1, 2021 - June 31, 2022

SPLOST VII
Budget Actual Percentage

REVENUES
       Taxes -                   1,525,316         #DIV/0!
       Interest -                   116                   #DIV/0!
       Other -                   -                   0.00%

               Total revenues -                       1,525,432         #DIV/0!

EXPENDITURES (Capital Outlays)
       City hall acquisition -                   65                     #DIV/0!
       Roads and sidewalks -                   4,980                #DIV/0!
       Public works equipment - roads -                   -                   0.00%
       Land Acq. / Downtown -                   107,300            0.00%
       Public works equipment - sewer -                   -                   0.00%
       Water projects/Sewer Projects -                   -                   0.00%
       Public works equipment - water -                   -                   0.00%
       Farmers market -                   -                   #DIV/0!
       Parks and recreation -                   -                   0.00%

               Total expenditures -                   112,345            #DIV/0!

TOTAL REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 1,413,087         

      Transfer in From Reserves (1,413,087)       
 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 0                       


	1. 07.18.2022 AGENDA City Council Regular Meeting and Work Session
	7a. 1 Executive Summary For Agenda Items MINUTES
	7a. 2 06.20.2022 MINUTES City Council Regular Meeting.DRAFT
	7b. 1 Executive Summary For Agenda Items MASTER METER EULA
	7b. 2 Master Meter user license agreement
	8. 1  Executive Summary For Agenda Items EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION
	9. 1 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY Appeal C2200182 Public Hearing 7-18-22
	9. 2 APPEAL C2200182
	10. 1 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ANX C2200161 Public Hearing 6-20-22
	10. 2 ANX-C2200161_GILLESPIE
	11. 1 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ANX C2200162 Public Hearing 6-20-22
	11. 2 ANX-C2200162_DISHROON
	12. 1 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ANX C2200170 Public Hearing 6-20-22
	12. 2 ANX-C2200170_TURNER
	13. 1 Executive Summary DISTILLERY LEASE TERMINATION
	13. 2 Re_ Lease_Redacted
	14. 1 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY Starlight Homes Lift Station Request
	14. 2 Starlight Homes Lift Station Request (1)
	14. 3 Starlight Homes Lift Station Request (2)
	15. 1  Executive Summary For Agenda Items CITY MANAGER
	15. 2 07182022 CITY MANAGER REPORT
	16. 1 Executive Summary For Agenda Items FINANCE ADMINISTRATOR
	16. 2 Financial Statements-JUNE22
	GF Budget
	WS vs Budget
	SPLOST
	SPLOST VII




